
ADDENDUM # 3 TO RFP # 0058028 
 

VIRGINIA POLYTECHNIC INSTITUTE AND STATE UNIVERSITY (Virginia Tech) 
Procurement Department (MC 0333) 

North End Center, Suite 2100 
300 Turner Street NW 

Blacksburg, Virginia 24061 
 

DATE 
 
December 12, 2018 

DUE DATE AND HOUR 
 
January 23, 2019 @ 3:00pm 

 
ADDRESS ALL INQUIRIES AND CORRESPONDENCE TO: Reed Nagel Team Lead for Facilities Support  
E-MAIL ADDRESS: nagelr@vt.edu TELEPHONE NUMBER  (540) 231-5240 
FAX NUMBER  (540) 231-9628 AFTER HOUR MESSAGES  (540) 231-6221 

 
Facilities Project Management Services 

 
 

1. Please see the attached responses to inquiries received about this RFP. 
 

2. All other terms, conditions and descriptions remain the same. 
 
 
I acknowledge that I have read and understand this addendum in its entirety.  
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________ 

Signature   Date 
 
 
 

 
Revised 01/01/2018 

  



REQUEST FOR INFORMATION:  FACILITIES PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES RFP 
 
1. In the statement of needs contractors is plural in many cases.  Will multiple firms be selected for this 

contract?  It is understood that volume is not guaranteed.  If multiple firms are awarded this contract, what is 
the anticipated percent of projects per firm?  What method will Virginia Tech use to assign projects?  Will 
Virginia Tech try to keep the dollar volume even between firms?  Or will the number of projects be kept even? 
 
RESPONSE:  There has not been a determination as to whether multiple awards will be granted at this time.  
Virginia Tech does reserve the right to award multiple contracts under this solicitation. Should multiple awards 
be issued under this solicitation, additional guidance as to project assignment, dollar volume and project 
management duties will be determined through a detailed process and procedures process.   
 

2. Reference section VI.B.3.b.  Are estimates required for each project?  What level of documents are provided 
for estimates?  Can estimates be a combination of takeoff/unit prices and input from subcontractors?  What 
level of accuracy is required at each stage of the estimates? 
 
RESPONSE:  Each project at a minimum should provide Rough Order of Magnitude pricing.  Projects that 
require an on-demand bid or IFB should have a conceptual budget breakdown/by trade pricing. The contractor 
should provide estimating services for customers and projects over $1.5M. The contractor’s pricing should be 
within 15% +/- accuracy. 
 

3. Reference VI.B.5.f- are all projects, regardless of size, required to have schedules?  Can schedules provided 
by firms performing the work be used?  Can Microsoft Excel be utilized as a scheduling software program to 
comply with VI.E.1.b.i.2? 
 
RESPONSE:  At a minimum, all projects should provide a project time line/duration. Projects 4 weeks or less 
in duration should have a look ahead schedule showing the day to day tasks taking place on the project. The 
look ahead schedule can be either a gantt chart, excel or word document.  Projects 4 weeks or longer in 
duration should have a Gantt chart schedule and updated at each progress meeting/subcontractors invoice 
submission. GC’s/Subcontractor’s schedules may be used provided they are reviewed for accuracy and 
accepted by the contractor understanding the customer’s deadlines/requirements. 
 

4. Reference VI.B.5.i- This section notes that the contractor is required to approve submittals and shop 
drawings.  Who bears liability for final approval of shop drawings and submittals?  Does the selected 
Contractor?  Or does the AE?  In the event that a project does not have an AE involved, will Virginia Tech 
review and approve submittals?  If the Contractor is liable for approval of shop drawings and submittals, what 
is their overall financial liability? 
 
RESPONSE:  The contractor is responsible for reviewing the shop drawings/submittals to ensure they are 
accurate and provide sufficient details for A/E review. The contractor shall review the drawings on behalf of 
the University, and any decisions/approvals are the responsibility of the contractor to ensure Subcontractors 
and A/E’s are making decisions which are in the best interest of the University and the Customer’s needs. 
  

5. Reference section 3, Background, and VII.A.6.A- How is the cost of work figured?  Is design cost included in 
the total cost of work?  Are third party inspections included in the total cost of the project?  Please provide 
examples of FF&E typically managed under this contract. 
RESPONSE:  The University cannot clarify this question at this time.  Based upon the Contractor(s), the 
content of this question would be included in any negotiated terms during the course of contract negotiation 
with the Contractor(s). 
 

6. Reference section 3, Background, - Virginia Tech indicates that from 2013-2017, 645 projects were managed 
(note this excludes 2018 YTD).  This equates to roughly 129 projects per year.  Approximately, how many 
active projects does the program manager manage at any given time?  
 



RESPONSE:  The number of active projects vary depending on the needs of the college and the University. 
The RFP and the figures provided therein provide a historical average for reference.  However, the actual 
number will vary depending on need. 
 

7. Understanding that 645 projects were managed during this time, how many projects does VT cancel before 
they move into construction?  How is the fee calculated on projects that are cancelled?  
 
RESPONSE:  The number of projects and reasons projects are cancelled is dependent upon the needs of 
the college and University.  Any discussion regarding fee structures will be negotiated during contract 
negotiations. 
 

8. Reference E.1.c- what are the typical cost for telephone and data, provided by the University, per month per 
employee on the project?  
 
RESPONSE:  Virginia Tech reserves the right adjust pricing of these services provided.  These fees vary 
depending on the number of active ports used by the firm at any given time. At present pricing, full port usage 
incurs a monthly expense of approximately $440.00.  
 

9. Reference Attachment B, Special Terms and Conditions, Insurance Section, Coverage Limits, D- please 
clarify this section.  Does the contractor have to provide builders risk?  Does Builders Risk only need to be 
obtained for projects between $100,000 and $500,000 as noted?  Or does this apply to projects over 
$500,000?  If the selected program manager is providing builder’s risk, what deductibles should they 
assume?  What method will be used to flow down the builders risk deductible to contractors?  Can builders 
risk be purchased from the contractor doing the work and be considered a cost of the work?  
 
RESPONSE:  This is not applicable to this particular contract and shall be disregarded for the purposes of 
this RFP. 
 

10. Reference Section III. Background.  The proposal notes that there are multiple off campus facilities.  How is 
cost associated with travel, travel time, and time on site for those projects reimbursed?  How many projects 
have been completed at projects off site?  How many are anticipated moving forward?  
 
RESPONSE:  The projects off-site from the main Blacksburg campus varies depending on the needs of each 
college and the University.  It is Virginia Tech’s policy to reimburse approved travel expenses and fees are 
based on the current per diem rates listed in the GSA website located at: https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-
book/per-diem-rates  
 

11. Reference Section III. Background.  Please confirm if all groups within the University are required to utilize 
this contract.  If not all groups are required to use this contract, which do not?  Does the university have plans 
to allow additional groups to be exempt from using this contract?  If so, what portion of the volume from fiscal 
year 2013-2018 do they represent? 
 
RESPONSE:  The University in no way represents that all renovation work will be assigned to or managed 
by the contractor(s) awarded this contract. The University reserves the right to utilize selected renovation and 
construction projects using alternative contracting methods. 
 

12. Reference C.1.d- please confirm that the VT Work Order Management System will generate  a report showing 
project updates and schedules for the estimate, design, bid, permit and construction for each project with 8 
week projections.  
 
RESPONSE:  The University will continue to utilize the Work Order Management System in place, which 
tracks updates, schedules, design, bid, permit, and construction project with projections. 
 

13. Reference C.1.c- This section notes that the Executive Summary Report should show retention to 
date.  Please clarify intent.  Is the contractor to track retainage on all projects for awarded contracts?  Is 

https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates
https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates


Virginia Tech’s intent to hold retaininage on the Program Manager?  If so, what would trigger the release of 
retainage? 
 
RESPONSE:  The University cannot clarify this question at this time.  Based upon the Contractor(s), the 
content of this question would be included in any negotiated terms during the course of contract negotiation 
with the Contractor(s). 
 

14. Reference VII.6.A.  How will the contractor bill for their services?  Will contractors wait until the end of a job 
to collect their management fee, and submit an invoice after final cost are determined?  Will progress billings 
be allowed? 
 
RESPONSE:  The University cannot clarify this question at this time.  Based upon the Contractor(s), the 
content of this question would be included in any negotiated terms during the course of contract negotiation 
with the Contractor(s). 
 

15. Reference VI.A.5.e and f- please provide copies of Addendums D and E.  Please confirm Addendums A-C 
are not used. 
 
RESPONSE: The term “Addendum” was incorrectly used in this paragraph and should be corrected to 
“Attachment.”  The following Attachments were included in the RFP: 
 
Attachment A- Virginia Tech Procurement Terms and Conditions 
Attachment B- Virginia Tech Special Terms and Conditions 
Attachment C- Sample of Standard Contract Form 
Attachment D- Virginia Tech Facilities Special Terms and Conditions 

 
 
16. How is the current effort staffed with dedicated employees? 
 

RESPONSE:  The current effort is staffed solely by the incumbent Contractor.  Virginia Tech has no control 
over the staffing for the third party project management firm.  It is expected that the Contractor(s) would 
provide the staffing required to properly manage these projects on behalf of Virginia Tech. 

 
17. Is current project tracking done in hokie serve? 

 
RESPONSE:  Some project tracking is completed through HokieServ. 
 

18. Have there been historical issues with response time to hokie serve requests and has the incumbent solved 
those issues? 
 
RESPONSE:  With software programs, there may be issues in processing requests, which may be outside of 
Virginia Tech’s control.  However, Virginia Tech continues to utilize HokieServ and will continue to refine the 
services to provide the best platform necessary to address problems or concerns with the software. 

 
19. Will past work experience of the company ownership team be considered for the references criteria section? 

 
RESPONSE:  Virginia Tech would like the references to come from customers you have provided construction 
project management if possible.  
 

20. Please confirm the anticipated date(s) for oral presentations.  
 
RESPONSE:  At this time, Virginia Tech cannot give an anticipated date. We will however, provide the 
contractors with ample notice if they are selected for presentations.  
 

21. Please confirm the anticipated date for the award of contract. 
 



RESPONSE:  At this time Virginia Tech cannot give an anticipated date. This is due to the complexity of this 
procurement and changing timelines.  
 

22. Who is the current incumbent? 
 

23. RESPONSE:  Gilbane Building Company 
 

24. Please provide an indication or a description of how approvals and the decision making process is managed 
internally. Specifically, will there be multiple parties and/or committees involved or will there be only a couple 
parties or a single point-of-contact our team will be working with to obtain final approvals and sign-offs? 
 
RESPONSE:  The awarded contract will be required to work with VT Facilities and VT Procurement to obtain 
final approval and sign-offs on all projects.  
 

25. Please confirm only one Contractor/Company will be awarded the scope of work. 
 
RESPONSE:  As stated in the RFP, Virginia Tech reserves the right to make multiple awards off this 
solicitation.  
 

26. Please confirm how long mail typically takes to get from the central drop-off location to the procurement office. 
 
RESPONSE:  Mail can a week or more to reach the procurement office if sent through USPS. When submitting 
proposals it is recommended to hand deliver or use either UPS or FedEx.  

 
 


